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Dear Sirs,
We hereby submit, on behalf of OPAP S.A., a public limited company whose shares
are traded on the Athens Stock Exchange, all relevant press and company releases
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Final Results For The Twelv}‘y\}

Revenues grew by 9.3% to €1,973.9m (2001: €1,805.5m)

EBITDA, pre-Intralot provision, up 1.3% to €405.8m (2001: €400.6m)
Net Income down 14.6% to €206.1m (2001: €241.2m)

Full Year Dividend of €0.67 per share

Ended December 31, 2002

YV V V V

ATHENS, Greece — February 27, 2003 ~ OPAP SA (OPAr.AT), the leading gaming
company in Greece, today announces its financial results for the Three-month and Twelve-
month periods ended December 31, 2002, prepared in accordance with International
Accounting Standards.

1. OVERVIEW

(€m) Q4 02 Q4 01 A% | 12M02] 12MO01| 4%
Operating Revenues 616.5 601.2 25| 19739 1,805.5 9.3
EBITDA* 116.4 130.1| (10.5) 405.8 4006 1.3
EBITDA Margin 18.9 21.6| (28| 206%| 222%| (1.6)
Net Income 30.1 90.5 | (66.7) 206.1 241.2 | (14.6)

* excluding the provision of €65.5m for the payment of potential damage claims to Intralot

Revenues for the period grew to €1,973.9m, 9.3% up on 2001. Sthima, the Company’s largest
sports betting game, was the principal growth driver with revenues up 15.0% to €1,511.4m
(2001: €1,313.8m). Revenues from OPAP’s numerical games amounted to €407.9 (2001:
€424.7).

EBITDA for the period, excluding the provision of €65.5m for potential damage claims to
Intralot with respect to the non-introduction of horse and greyhound betting in our Stihima
game, amounted to €405.8m, 1.3% up on 2001 although margins were down at 20.6% (2001:
22.2%). This decrease in the EBITDA margin is due to an increase in the proportion of lower
margin Stihima revenues, the decrease in the proportion of higher margin Joker revenues and
an increase in distribution expenditures for a corporate advertising campaign conducted
throughout this year, but particularly in the fourth quarter for the launch of Super 3 and
Extra 5. If advertising costs for the launch campaign of these games were excluded, the
EBITDA margin for the fourth quarter would have been 20.4%, and 21.0% for the full year.
OPAP also recorded a profit decline for the twelve months of 2002, principally due to the
Intralot provision. Net income for the period amounted to €206.1m, 14.6% down on 2001.

Commenting on the Twelve Month results Dr. Konstantinos Koskinas, Chairman and
Managing Director, noted:

“Despite a challenging and eventful year, we are very pleased with the positive
results of our company in 2002. Stihima, our strongest game, performed strongly
despite the challenges of the 2002 World Cup and overall unfavourable, for our
games, football seasons. Joker, our second largest game, was significantly
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impacted by unfavourable jackpot rollovers and contributed to an overail weaker
than expected performance of our numerical games. In addition, the reorganisation
of our company and the restructuring of our agency network created another
challenge for our management team. We nevertheless remain confident in the
prospects of our games and look forward to a good year in 2003, which is off to a
good start with the solid performance of Extra 5 and Super 3, as well as our other
games.”
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating Revenues for the Three-month and Twelve-month periods ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001

(€m) Q4 02 Q4 01 A% 12M 02 12M 01 A%
Stihima 458.3 432.8 5.9 1,511.4 1,313.8| 15.0
PROPO 22.0 244 | (9.9) 66.5 64.7 2.8
PROPO-GOAL 0.6 0.5 18.2 2.2 2.3 (3.0)
Total Sports Betting 480.9 457.7 51 1,580.1 1,380.8 14.4
JOKER 60.7 105.7 | (42.6) 223.8 294.9 | (24.1)
LOTTO 25.8 21.9 17.9 81.8 76.9 6.4
PROTO 15.1 16.0 | (5.5) 54.2 52.9 2.4
Super 3 20.4 -- MM 20.4 -- MM
Extra 5 13.5 -- M 13.5 - M
Total Numerical Games 135.6 143.6 | (5.6) 393.8 424.7 | (7.3)
Total Revenues 616.5 601.3 2.5 1,973.9 1,805.5 9.3

Sports Betting Games

Sports betting revenues for the twelve months of 2002 grew by 14.4%, primarily driven by
strong growth of 15.0% from StiAima and to a lesser extent by Propo, whose revenues
benefited from the inclusion of Greek football games from the fall of 2001 onwards. Propo-
Goal’s performance was 3.0% down on 2001, although this had only a marginal impact on
overall sports betting revenues.

Stihima revenues increased by 5.9% in the quarter compared to the same period in 2001,
mainly due to a strong December, where revenues increased by 20%.

Numerical Games

Revenues for the twelve months of 2002 were €393.8m (2001: €424.7m). This decline is
primarily due to a significant decrease in Joker revenues, which were negatively impacted by a
lower number of jackpot roliovers. The negative performance of Joker was partially offset by a
6.4% increase in Lofto revenues and a 2.4% increase in Profo revenues, as well as the
successful introduction on 25 November, 2002 of Super 3 and Extra 5 which together
generated €34.0m. The fourth quarter of 2002 saw a particularly large decline in Joker
revenues of 42.6%, which occurred in October and November, due to a lack of favourable
jackpot rollovers. Joker revenues in November 2001 were particularly strong with more than
twice the average monthly revenue for this game. However, December, which had more
favourable jackpot rollovers, showed a 5% increase compared to December 2001. Lotto
revenues for the fourth quarter of 2002 increased by 17.9%.

Revenues from Cyprus

Revenues from OPAP’s operations in Cyprus for the twelve months of 2002 were €39.7m (2001:
€39.1m) accounting for 2.0% (2001: 2.2%) of the Company’s total operating revenues.
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Cost of Sales for the Three-month and Twelve-month periods ended December 31,

2002 and 2001

| (€000) Q4 02 Q4 01 4% | 12M 02| 12M 01 A%

| Prize payouts to
lottery and betting
winners 346,616 | 337,366 2.7 1,123,114 | 1,019,872 10.1
Lottery agents’
commissions 54,082 54,114 (0.1) 174,856 163,386 7.0
Betting commissions 45,969 43,407 5.9 154,018 134,198 14.8
Depreciation 1,365 1,292 57 5,233 5,082 3.0}
Amortisation 4,398 2,785 57.9 17,283 16,482 4.9
Repairs and
maintenance 1,467 1,536 (4.5, 5,642 5115 10.3
Outside resourcing 2,295 2,166 6.0 8,227 7,906 4.1
Greek Professional
Football Association 1,367 1,539 (11.1) 3,861 1,767 | 1185
Staff cost 3,197 4,650 (31.3) 10,761 12,014 | (10.4)
Other expenses 13,183 13,132 0.4 25,537 28,360 | (10.0)
Provisions for bad
debtors 4 (641) | (100.6) 28 4 | (36.4)
Retirement benefit
costs 1,531 (149) | (1,127.5) 1,719 1,363 26.1
Total Cost of Sales 475,473 | 461,197 3.1} 1,530,279 | 1,395,589 9.7

OPAP’s most significant cost relates to the payouts to lottery and betting winners, which in the
twelve months of 2002 increased by 10.1%, in line with overall revenue growth. Overall
payouts as a percentage of operating revenues increased slightly from 56.5% in the twelve
months of 2001 to 56.9% for the same period in 2002. Stihima accounted for 74.3% of total
revenues (2001: 72.0%) in the fourth quarter and 76.6% (2001: 72.8%) in the twelve months
of 2002. The increase in overall payouts in 2002 compared to 2001 due to the higher
proportion of Stifiima sales, which have a higher payout than OPAP’s other games, has been
largely offset by Stihima’s lower payouts in 2002 of 59.8% (2001: 60.0%).

Betting commissions paid to Intralot S.A. (who take responsibility for risk management of
Stihima) were up 14.8% in the twelve months of 2002, in line with the growth of Stihima
revenues.

Payments to the Greek Professional Football Association were resumed in the fall of 2001 with
the start of the new football season and following the re-introduction of Greek football games
within the Company’s Propo game, which together with the increased percentage payment to
10.5% from 7% on 26 October 2002, leads to increased payments of €3.9m for the twelve
months of 2002 (2001: €1.8m).

Staff costs in the fourth quarter and twelve months of 2002 were 31.3% and 10.4% down,
respectively, compared to the same periods in 2001, mainly due to a reduction in headcount
and lower compensation levels.
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Other Operating Expenses/Income

In the twelve months of 2002 the Company recorded distribution expenses of €41.1m (2001:
€19.9m) as a result of increased corporate advertising for both existing games and the
introduction of Super 3 and Extra 5, and increased administrative expenses of €23.7m (2001:
€19.8m) following expenses from the equity offering in July of 2002 and increased provisions
for retirement benefits and a partial reallocation of provisions for bonus payments from cost of

sales.

Other operating expenses relate to exchange differences (Cyprus) and penalty payments to tax
authorities, as well as the payment and expensing of a previously capitalised obligation to the
government of Cyprus in the context of the new agreement for OPAP’s operations in that
country. Net financing income is up primarily due to interest income from the Company’s
higher cash balances during the twelve months of 2002 and to a lesser extent from reduced

debt.

Cash Flows for the Three-month and Twelve-month periods ended December 31,
2002 and 2001

(€m) Q4 02 Q4 01 A% | 12M 02| 12MO1 | 4%
Cash Flow from 169.1 1316 285 195.6 422.1 | (53.7)
Operating Activities
Cash Flow from 0.1 3.1| (79.2) (31.0) (26.3) | (17.8)
Investing Activities
Cash Flow from (14.7) (14.8) | (1.1) (177.3) (173.9) 2.0
Financing Activities

Cash flow from operating activities in the twelve months of 2002 declined by 53.7% to €195.6m
compared to €422.1m for 2001. This decline is primarily due to higher income taxes amounting
to €216.0m and a significant settlement payment in the amount of €41.5m from Intralot S.A.
received in the first quarter of 2001, which related to the year ended December 31, 2000. The
Company received a smaller settlement payment in the amount of €12.8m in respect of the
year ended December 31, 2001 in the fourth quarter of 2002.

Cash flow from operating activities in the fourth quarter of 2002 increased by 28.5%, primarily
due to receipt by OPAP of the settlement payment from Intralot in December as well as a lower
payout ratio of Stihima (55%) than in the fourth quarter of 2001.

Cash flow used in investing activities for the twelve months of 2002 was €31.0m (2001: use of
€26.3m). The use of cash in both periods relates primarily to the two final annual installments
to the Hellenic Republic, principally for the Company’s 20-year licence, in the amount of €38.1m
each.

Cash used in financing activities for the twelve months of 2002 was €177.3m (2001: €173.9m)
due to dividend payments in the amount of €137.1 and to a lesser degree from the repayment
of borrowings.
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2. Main Developments

Dividend Distribution

The Board of Directors of OPAP intends to propose to the annual general assembly of 2003 a
Total Dividend in respect of 2002 of €0.67 per share (2001: €0.60 per share), amounting to
€213.7m (2001: 191.5m). Excluding the Interim Dividend of €0.27 per share (€86.1m) already
paid, the remaining dividend to be distributed to shareholders following general assembly
approval will amount to €0.40 per share, or €127.6m.

Operations in Cyprus

As announced previously the Governments of Greece and Cyprus have signed a new
agreement, which allows for the operation of OPAP in Cyprus on a commercial basis. This
agreement, which replaces all prior agreements, is for an indefinite period and valid as of
January 1, 2003. It can be terminated after four years with a one-year prior notice period (i.e.
not earlier than after five years).

The agreement provides for the formation of a new company (OPAP Cyprus SA), which will be
wholly owned by OPAP and operate all games on the same terms as OPAP in Greece. Should
these terms change, the change will automatically also apply to Cyprus. Under the agreement
OPAP Cyprus will have the licence for all existing games of OPAP (except Stihima) and Kino.
The introduction of new games, except Stihima, will require an amendment of the existing
agreement. The existing network of approximately 160 agents in Cyprus will operate under
same terms as those specified for agents in Greece.

A share of 10% of revenues will be paid from OPAP Cyprus to OPAP, while the remaining profits
(after deduction of another 10% to cover operating expenses) are paid to the Government of
Cyprus on a quarterly basis. OPAP has agreed to use its profits from the first two years of
operation of OPAP Cyprus for upgrading its business in the country.

Stihima was excluded from the agreement because it falls under a separate legal and regulatory
framework. We are in the process of evaluating the way in which to best introduce Stihima in

Cyprus.
New Games

Extra 5 and Super 3 were successfully introduced on November 25, 2002. These games are
targeted at the new market segment of numerical fixed-odds games and have thus far
exceeded our expectations in terms of revenues generated.

Preparations for the introduction of Kino are on track. However, due to the success of Extra 5
and Super 3 we are evaluating the appropriate timing for the introduction of Aino, which may
take place either at the end of the second quarter or after the summer of this year. In the first
phase, we plan to launch Kirno at the premises of our existing agents, and on a pilot basis in
outlets outside our agent network. Following the results of the pilot phase, we expect to roli
out the game all over Greece and Cyprus.
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With regard to Stihima, we plan to introduce fixed-odds betting on tennis matches most likely
within May, due to lack of major tournaments earlier.

Intralot Arbitration

As we mentioned in our recent announcement the tri-partite arbitration court decided last
month to award compensation by OPAP to Intralot for foregone profits in the amount of €37.4m
per annum, starting from March 30, 2001, for the delay in the introduction of horse and
greyhound racing. OPAP is preparing an application before the competent courts for an
annulment of the arbitral decision. We have nevertheless decided to provide for this potential
expense in our financial statements.

New Regulation for Operation of Agent Network

OPAP successfully concluded the negotiations with its agents and the new regulation governing
the terms of operation of the agent network was approved by the Greek government on
February 5, 2003.

This regulatory framework is a key milestone in the restructuring of OPAP’s distribution network
and includes, among others, provisions that will (i) allow the formation of regional joint
ventures among agents, (ii) set the framework for an upgrade of agent facilities and the
introduction of secondary services (e.g. ticketing), (iii) give OPAP the flexibility to expand its
distribution network for its Aino game beyond the existing agents, and (iv) provide incentives in
the form of a more structured bonus system. The agreement does not provide for a change in
the percentage commissions paid to agents.

The individual agreements with agents have not yet been signed. Following the passing of the
new regulation we commenced discussions with agents regarding the implementation of our
restructuring plan. The recent two-day strike by some of our agents, which were in
demonstration of the new regulation, had no material impact on our operations or financial
results.

About OPAP

OPAP is the leading gaming company in Greece and currently holds the sole concession to operate and manage six
existing numerical lottery and sports betting games, as well as five new numerical lottery games. In addition, OPAP
holds the sole concession to operate and manage any new sports betting games in Greece as well as the right of first
refusal to operate any new lottery games permitted by the Hellenic Republic. OPAP is listed on the Athens Stock
Exchange and has a free float of 24.3%, with the remainder held by the Hellenic Republic.

Contact: Mr Konstantinos Tsaousis, Tel: +30 10 520 1384, email: conopap3@otenet.ar
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APPENDICES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards)

II.

III.

OPAP S.A., Income Statements for the twelve-month periods ended December 31, 2002
and 2001

OPAP S.A., Balance Sheets as at December 31, 2002 and 2001

OPAP S.A., Cash Flow Statements for the twelve-month periods ended December 31,
2002 and 2001

OPAP S.A., Statement of Changes in Net Equity for the twelve-month periods ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001

Notes to Financial Statements
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APPENDIX 1

OPAP S.A.

Income Statements
For the Twelve-month Periods Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

(Thousands of Euro, except for per share amounts)

Notes 2002 2001 A%
Revenue 2 1,973,935 1,805,514 9.3
Cost of sales 3 (1,530,279) (1,395,588) 9.7
Gross profit 443,656 409,926 8.2
Other operating income 2 6,646 6,892 (3.6)
Distribution costs (41,144) (19,887) 106.9
Administrative expenses (23,742) (19,755) 20.2
Other operating expenses (4,051) (509) 695.9
Other operating loss (65,480) -- NM
Profit from operations 315,885 376,667 (16.1)
Net financing costs 4 5,515 (1,773)  (411.1)
Profit before tax 321,400 374,894 (14.3)
Tax expense 7 (117,878) (135,033) (12.7)
Deferred taxes 7,20 2,586 1,337 93.4
Profit after tax 206,108 241,198 (66.7)
Net profit for the period 206,108 241,198 (66.7)
Basic Earnings per Share 9 0.65 0.76 (14.5)
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APPENDIX I1
OPAP S.A.
Balance Sheets
As at December 31, 2002 and 2001
(Thousands of Euro)
ASSETS Notes 31/12/2002 31/12/2001
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17 359,121 371,837
Inventories 14 428 688
Trade receivables 15 34,396 24,680
Other current assets 16 76,726 88,538
Deferred expenses 0 4,093
Total current assets 470,671 489,836
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 276,686 292,107
Property, plant and equipment 11 17,518 22,827
Other non-current assets 13 8,625 7,113
Deferred tax assets 20 5,137 2,551
Total non-current assets 307,966 324,598
TOTAL ASSETS 778,637 814,434
LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Borrowings 20 39,036 37,595
Trade and other payables 23 93,934 258,904
Taxes payable 7 112,849 221,401
Accrued liabilities 3,105 45
Total current liabilities 248,924 517,945
Non - current liabilities
Borrowings 21 83,681 125,385
Employee benefit plans 24 19,242 14,331
Provisions 25 65,480 1,815
Other non-current liabilities 22 4,989 3,582
Total non current liabilities 173,392 145,113
Shareholders’ equity
Issued capital 18 95,700 95,700
Reserves 19 34,313 55,709
Dividends payables 10 213,730 0
Retained earnings 12,578 (33)
Total shareholders’ equity 356,321 151,376
TOTAL LIABILITIES & SH. EQUITY 778,637 814,434
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APPENDIX II1

OPAP S.A.

Cash Flow Statements
For the Twelve-month Periods Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001
(Thousands of Euro)

Notes 2002 2001
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 26 418,431 - 456,520
Interest paid (6,758) (10,362)
Income taxes paid (216,027) (24,020)
Cash flow from operating activities 195,646 422,138
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Loans granted to personnel (1,512) (1,178)
Value adjustments of intangible assets 0,00 294
Purchase of plant and equipment (1,914) (1,727)
Purchase of intangible assets (39,866) (32,299)
Interest received 12,273 8,589
Cash flow used in investing activities (31,019) (26,321)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from non-current borrowings (40,262) (31,548)
Dividends paid 10 (137,081) (142,328)
Cash flow used in financing activities (177,343) (173,876)
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash
equivalents (12,716) 221,941
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 371,837 149,896
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 359,121 371,837
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APPENDIX IV
OPAP S.A.

Statement of Changes in Net Equity
For the Twelve-month Periods Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001
(Thousands of Euro)

Share Other Dividends Retained
capital reserves Payables earnings

Balance at December 31, 2000 93,617 8,670 0 (2,001)
Tax correction - 2,908 - (1,744)
Restated balance at 31 December,

2000 93,617 11,578 - (3,745)
Restatement of Reserves - 196 - -
Net profit for the period - - - 241,198
Dividends - - - (191,468)
Transfer to reserves - 46,018 - (46,018)
Issue of share capital - reserves 2,083 (2,083) - -
Balance at December 31, 2001 95,700 55,709 0 (33)
Net profit for the period - - - 206,108
Tax correction - - - (1,163)
Dividends - - 213,730 (213,730)
Transfer to reserves - 10,299 - (10,299)
Transfer to dividends - (31,695) - 31,695
Balance at December 31, 2002 95,700 34,313 213,730 12,578

Total
100,286
1,164

101,450
196
241,198
(191,468)

151,376

206,108
(1,163)

0

0

0
356,321
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APPENDIXV

OPAP S.A.
Notes to Financial Statements

General Information

OPAP S.A. was established as a private legal entity in 1958.

OPAP S.A. was reorganized as a sociéte anonyme in 1999 and its accounting as such began in 2000.

The Company has the sole concession to operate and manage eight existing numerical lottery and sports
betting games as well as three new numerical lottery games, which it has yet to introduce. The
Company also holds the sole concession to operate and manage any new sports betting games in Greece
as well as a right of first refusal to operate and manage any new lottery games permitted by the Hellenic
Republic.

The Company currently operates five numerical lottery games (Joker, Lotto, Proto, Extra 5, Super 3) and
three sports betting games (Stihima, Propo and Propo-goal). Extra 5 and Super 3 were introduced late
November 2002 It has also designed three new lottery games (Bingo, Kino, and Super 4). 1t distributes
its games through an extensive on-line network of approximately 5,219 dedicated agents.

The Company’s Reorganization

Until 1999, OPAP S.A. operated as a non-profit organization. The Company had the exclusive right to
operate numerical lottery and sports betting games. For the games operated, OPAP S.A. paid the
Hellenic Republic the total revenues from numerical lottery and sports betting games minus a specific
percentage retained to cover its operational expenses and implement its development plans.

At the time OPAP S.A. was reorganized into a société anonyme, a valuation committee was appointed,
under relevant Greek law, to revalue the organization’s assets and liabilities on the basis of their value.
This committee consisted of a chartered accountant, a chartered surveyor and an employee of the
Ministry of Commerce, which do not constitute a "professional valuer” within the meaning of International
Financial Reporting Standards. A professional valuer may have made a different determination as to
market value, The difference between the fair market value and the historical value resulted in the initial
share capital of €29.347.000, with the sole shareholder being the Hellenic Republic.

The Company purchased from the Hellenic Republic the 20-year exclusive right to operate certain
numetrical lottery and sports betting games for €322.817.000. Since the date of that agreement, the
Company no longer pays the Hellenic Republic a percentage of its revenue, and its relationship with the
Hellenic Republic has been that of a Company with its shareholder in accordance with Greek corporate
law.

As a non-profit organization, the Company was not subject to income taxation. Since its reorganization
into a société anonyme, it has been subject to income tax applicable to Greek corporations generally.
During 2000, however, its profit subject to tax was determined by deducting from its profits before tax
non-taxable amounts that included the amount of dividends paid by the Company to the Hellenic
Republic.
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A. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards. The financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention, except as

disclosed in the accounting policies below.
B. Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements and in
determining the results for the year and the financial position are set out below:

(i) Revenues

Revenues from games are recognized upon the completion of games, typically immediately before the
announcement of the results of games, which occurs twice weekly. Revenues from sports betting games
that last longer than three or four days are recognized on a cash basis twice weekly.

Other categories of revenues are recognized under the following methods:
a) other revenues are recognized when the event has occurred; and

b) interest on short-term investments (typicaily 12 or less days) is recognized on a cash basis,
and at the balance sheet date on an accrual basis.

(ii) Borrowings

Loans are recorded as liabilities at the date funds are received. Loan issuance expenses are included in
results of operations. At subsequent balance sheet dates, loans are shown at their unpaid principal
amount. Interest expenses are recognized when paid and at the balance sheet date to the extent that
these expenses are accrued and unpaid. Loans are classified as long-term if they mature in more than
one year and short-term if they mature in one year or less.

(1ii) Retirement Costs

Pursuant to the collective bargaining agreement between the Company and its employees, the Company
is obliged to pay its employees retirement benefits following completion of the requisite service period.
The cost of these benefits, determined periodically on an actuarial basis, is recognized as an expense in
the year that the service was rendered. A portion of this benefit may be paid to an employee prior to his
retirement. See Note B (ix).

(iv) Property, Plant and Equipment
The cost of tangible assets acquired after January 1, 2000 is stated at cost.
The value of tangible assets as at December 31, 1999 was estimated by a valuation committee appointed
in accordance with relevant Greek corporate law. The revalued amounts were recognized in the balance

sheet as of that date, with the revaluation surplus reflected as a fair value revaluation reserve and
subsequently used for the formation of the Company’s initial share capital.
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method based on cost or revalued amount as follows:

Land -
Buildings 20 years
Plant & Machinety 5-7 years
Vehicles 6.5 years
Equipment 5 years

(v) Intangible Assets

The 20-year concession granted by the Hellenic Republic to the Company to operate numerical lottery
and sports betting games has been stated at cost, which was determined by independent actuaries.

The cost of software acquired before December 31, 1999 has been stated at its revalued amount.
Software acquired after January 1, 2000 is stated at cost.

The value of software was estimated as at December 31, 1999 by the valuation committee referred to in
(iv) above. The revalued amounts were recognized in the balance sheet as of that date, with the
revaluation surplus reflected as a fair value revaluation reserve and subsequently used for the formation
of the Company’s initial share capital.

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method based on cost or revalued amount as follows:

Concession 20 years
Software 3 years

(vi) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the yearly
weighted average cost formuia.

(vii) Exchange Differences

At the balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are calculated using the relevant currency
exchange rate.

Non-monetary items are stated at historical cost, using the exchange rate at the date of the relevant
transaction, '

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the currency exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction, except for transactions that are related to operations in Cyprus, which are recorded at a fixed
exchange rate that approximates the actual rate and is restated periodically to reflect exchange rate
fluctuations. At the balance sheet date, these transactions of Cyprus are stated using the average yearly
exchange rate of the relevant currency.

(viii) Income Tax Expense
Income tax expense is calculated on taxable profits of the year using applicable tax rates.

For ali deductible temporary differences that arise from the difference between the taxabie base used for
the calculation of taxable income and the amount stated in financial statements, a deferred tax liability or
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deferred tax asset is recognized. The principal temporary differences that arise are from the amortization
of intangible assets and the provisions for employee retirement benefit plans.

The tax rate that is used for the calculation of deferred tax is the same as the tax rate used for the
calculation of the Company’s tax liabilities at the balance sheet date.

(ix) Other Non-current Assets

Non-current assets are recorded at their historical cost, without any present value discount from the date
of their anticipated maturity or realization.

Warranty Deposits

Warranty deposits are placed on deposit with certain suppliers to secure the Company’s obligations to
those suppliers. Amounts remain as demands for their duration. Upon the maturity of these obligations,
the amounts on deposit may be applied against all or a portion of the outstanding obligations according
to the terms of the deposit, with any balance being returned to the Company.

Prepayments for Retirement Benefits

These amounts are paid to employees in accordance with the Company’s collective bargaining
agreement. Since December 31, 2000 these amounts are paid to employees who have completed 17.5
years of service (prior to December 31, 2000 the requirement was 25 years of service). The amount
given is the total retirement compensation for the service rendered to that date (until December 31, 2000
the amount given was 50% of total retirement compensation for the service rendered). Prepaid amounts
are deducted from the lump-sum retirement benefit payable to the employee upon termination. Interest
on prepaid amounts is 2% for 2001.

Housing Loans to Personnel

In accordance with the Company’s collective bargaining agreement, eligible full-time employees are
entitled to housing loans. These loans have a term of 25 years with an initial two-year grace period on
repayments of principal and interest. Interest accrued at the rate of 2% for 2001.

There are three types of housing loans:

Acquisition Up to €32,281.73
Construction Up to €16,140.86
Repair Up to €8,070.43

(x) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash in open bank accounts and short-term deposits.

(xi) Provisions

Provisions are recognized and accounted for when the Company determines that an obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen, it is probable that the Company will have to expend money or other resources to
satisfy the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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Provisions are reconsidered at each balance sheet date so as to reflect the current estimate of the
obligation,

A provision is applied only to expenditures in respect of which the provision was originally recognized.

Provision for Doubtful Receivables

The Company establishes provisions for receivables equal to the amount of receivables from agents that
management of the Company estimates as doubtful. To determine the provisions necessary at a balance
sheet date, guarantees paid by agents are taken into consideration in accordance with regulations
governing the Company’s relationship with its agents. These guarantees are used to offset bad debts

from agents.

Management estimates that its provisions for credit risk are adequate due to its credit risk controls, the
large volume and disparate nature of its receivables and the real-time credit control of the Company's
agents through its on-line network.
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Business Segments For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

1. Segment Information

PROPO

PROPO LOTTO JOKER PROTO -GOAL EXTRAS SUPER3 STIHIMA TOTAL
Revenues 66,519 81,828 223,814 54,178 2,219 13,544 20,423 1,511,410 1,973,935
Gross profit 26,325 34,139 70,741 15,482 937 2,218 6,763 287,051 443,656
Other Information:
Tangible and intangible assets 9,899 12,583 34,187 8,429 333 2,037 3,072 223,664 294,204
Current assets 16,128 20,499 55,696 13,732 542 3,318 5,006 364,375 479,296
Segment assets 26,027 33,082 89,883 22,161 875 5,355 8,078 588,039 773,500
Unallocated assets 5,137
TOTAL ASSETS 778,637
Segment liabilities 7,562 9,619 26,131 6,445 254 1,556 2,348 170,830 224,745
Unallocated liabilities 197,571
TOTAL LIABILITIES 422,316
Additions of tangible and
intangible assets 125 159 432 106 4 26 39 2,825 3,716
Depreciation and amortization 822 1,045 2,840 700 28 169 255 18,577 24,436
Business Segments For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

PROPO-
PROPO LOTTO JOKER PROTO GOAL STIHIMA TOTAL
Revenues 64,691 76,912 294,913 52,914 2,287 1,313,797 1,805,514
Gross profit 26,251 34,001 99,657 16,533 1,005 232,479 409,926
Other Information:
Tangible and intangible assets 11,180 13,292 50,965 9,144 395 229,958 314,934
Current assets 17,388 20,673 79,270 14,223 615 357,667 489,836
Segment assets 28,568 33,965 130,235 23,367 1,010 587,625 804,770
Unallocated assets 9,664
TOTAL ASSETS 814,434
Segment liabilities 15,105 17,959 68,860 12,355 534 310,699 425,512
Unatlocated liabilities 237,546
TOTAL LIABILITIES 663,058
Additions of tangible and intangible assets 84 99 381 68 3 1.718 2.353
Depreciation and amortization 848 1.009 3.867 694 30 17.450 23.898
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There are no sales transactions between business segments. Segment assets consist of property, plant
and equipment, intangibie assets, inventories, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents.
Unallocated assets principally consist of deferred taxes

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation, employee benefit
plans and provisions.

A portion of cost of sales was allocated to business segments according to the revenues of each business
segment.

Geographical Segments

Greece is the home country of the Company.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002 Greece Cyprus Total
Revenues 1,934,224 39,711 1,973,935
Gross profit 430,334 13,322 443,656
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 Greece Cyprus Total
Revenues 1,766,379 39,135 1,805,514
Gross profit 398,254 11,672 409,926

Revenues are based on the country in which the customer is located. There are no sales between the
geographical segments.

2. Revenues

The analysis of each category of revenues recognized during the period is as follows:

For the Years Ended

December 31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Eura)

Revenues from games 1,973,935 1,805,514

Other operating income 6,646 6,892

Total Revenues 1,980,581 1,812,406
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3. Cost of Sales

The analysis of cost of sales classified by nature of expense is as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro)

Prize payouts to lottery and

betting winners 1,123,114 1,019,872
Lottery agents’ commissions 174,856 163,386
Betting Commissions 154,018 134,198
Depreciation 5,233 5,082
Amortization 17,283 16,482
Repairs and maintenance

expenditures 5,642 5,115+
QOutside Resourcing 8,227 7,906+

Distributions to Greek
Professional Footbali

Association 3,861 1,767
Staff cost 10,761 12,014
Retirement benefit costs 1,719 1,362+
Other expenses 25,537 28,360+
Provisions for bad debtors 28 44
Total cost of sales 1.530.279 1,395,588

*Restated amounts

Lottery Agents’ commissions are commissions accrued to the Company’s dedicated sales agents. They are
counted at a fixed rate of 8% on revenues which are generated from Stihima and super 3 and 12% for
the other games.

Betting commissions are paid to the operator of Stifima for the services that this entity provides in
relation to the operation of Stihima, which was introduced in 2000.

Distributions to the Greek Professional Football Association are related to the Propo and Propo-goal
games.

4. Other operating loss

The amount of € 65,480 thousands pertains to the managements’ estimate as to the total loss OPAP S.A.
might incur due to the payment of compensation to the company undertaking to operate the Stihima .
This compensation pertains to foregone profits caused by the delay in including horse and greyhounds
races in the betting coupon.
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5.Net Financing Cost

For the Years Ended
December 31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro)

Interest expense for Bank

borrowings (6,757) (10,362)
Interest income

Interest from deposits 11,608 7,996
Third party loans -
Personnel loans 664 593
Total interest income 12,272 8,589
Net Financing Cost 5,515 1,773)

The weighted average interest rate on the Company's borrowings was 4.18% in 2002, and 5.80% in
2001, The average interest rate earned on short-term bank deposits was 3.36% in 2002, and 3.85% in
2001,

6. Staff Costs

For the Years Ended December

31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro)
Employee remuneration 17,249 19,217
Social security costs 2,796 3,079
Retirement benefit costs 4911 5,949
Other remuneration 1,582 1,280
Total Staff Costs 26,538 29,525

The average number of full-time employees was 235 in 2002, and 243 in 2001. The average number of
part-time personnel was 200 in 2002, and 290 in 2001. An amount of €1,596(thousands) included in the
employee remuneration charge in 2001 is related to 2000.

7. Tax Expense

For the Years Ended

December 31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro)

Previous year’s taxes -

Income tax expense (117,878) (135,033)
Deferred tax 2,586 1,337
Total Tax Expense (115,292) {133,696)

The tax on the Company's profit before tax amount differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the statutory tax rate applicable to the Company.
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The calculation of income tax expense is as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro

except for percentages)

Profit before tax 321,401 374,894
Income not subject to tax 0,00 2,224
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 15,305 13,067
Taxable profit 336,706 385,737
Income tax rate 35.00% 35.00%

117,847 135,008
Additional income tax charges 31 25
Income Tax Expense 117,878 135,033

The income tax charge for 2002 and 2001 was calculated at a tax rate of 35%, which is the rate
applicable to Greek Societies Anonyrmous.

8. Exchange Differences

The exchange differences that resuited during the year, along with the exchange differences from foreign
currency balances at the balance sheet date, are as follows:

For the Years Ended December

31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro)

Revenue 5,327 6,129

Cost of sales (5,327) (6,129)

Valuation of monetary items at

December 31 482 1,851

Total exchange differences (482) 1,851

The Company has no foreign currency risk management policy as the operation of Cyprus has sufficient
liquidity to accommodate its operating needs and therefore operations in Cyprus do not give rise to
currency exchange transactions that expose the Company to significant foreign currency risk.

9. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated based on the weighted average of ordinary shares that were in
circulation during the year.

_The calculation of earnings per share is as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro)

Net profit attributable to shareholders 206,108 241,198

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 319,000,000 319,000,000

Basic earnings per share 0.65 0.76
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10. Dividends

Management intends to propose at the annual general meeting of 2003 a dividend in respect of 2002 of
€0.67 per share, amounting to a total dividend of € 213,730 thousands which is included in the Equity,
but distinguished form the retained earnings.
In the comparable financial statements of 2001 the amount of € 191,468 thousand pertaining to the
dividends of the year had been included in liabilities because on the date the financial statements were
published the distribution of that amount had already been finally approved by the annual general

meeting of the shareholders.

According to Law 2190/1920, the minimum dividend distributed to shareholders must be at least 35% of
net income. Furthermore, the company, through a board decision of November 11, 2002, has decided to
distribute an interim dividend of € 86,130,000 (or €0.27 per share) which was distributed on January 15,

2003.

11. Property, Plant and Equipment

Year ended December
31, 2001

Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge

At December 31, 2001
Cost or Valuation
Accumulated depreciation
Net Book Amount

Year ended December
31, 2002

Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation charge

At December 31, 2002
Cost or Valuation
Accumulated depreciation
Net Book Amount

Land &
Buildings

4,853
31

76

4,959
151
4,808

4,808
721
85

5,680
236
5,444

Plant & Vehicles &

Machinery Equipment

(Thousands of Euro)

16,939 6,085
1,506 190
4,169 2,532

23,990 8,731
9,714 4,988

14,276 3,743
14,276 3,743
332 860
4,467 2,670
24,322 9,591
14,181 7,658
10,141 1,933

Total

27,877
1,727

6,777

37,680
14,853
22,827

22,827
1,913
7,222

39,593
22,075
17,518

Plant and machinery mainly includes equipment for lottery agents. Ali property, plant and equipment, is

currently unencumbered.
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Year ended December
31, 2001

Opening net book amount
Additions

Amortization charge

At December 31, 2001
Cost or Valuation
Accumulated amortization
Net Book Amount

Opening net book amount
Additions

Amortization charge

At December 31, 2002
Cost or Valuation
Accumulated amortization
Net Book Amount

12. Intangible Assets

Software Rights
(Thousands of Euro)
1,926 306,676
626 -
980 16,141
4,371 322,817
2,799 32,282
1,572 290,535
1,572 290,535
1,803 -
1,083 16,141
6,174 322,817
3,882 48,423
2,292 274,394

Total

308,602
626
17,121

327,188
35,081
292,107

292,107

1,803
17,214

276,686

Intangible assets are currently unencumbered.

Amortization of the 20-year concession is inciuded in cost of sales, whereas amortization of software is
allocated among cost of sales (35%), administrative expenses (60%) and distribution costs (5%).

13. Other Non-current Assets and Investments

As at December 31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro)

Loans Receivables - -

Warranty deposits 793 80

Prepayments of retirement

benefits 4,319 3,894

Housing loans to personnel 3,513 3,139

Total non-current assets and

investments 8,625 2,113

The current portion of Other Non-current Assets” is included in trade receivables. See Note 15.

14. Inventories

As at December 31, 2002 2001
; (Thousands of Euro)

Raw materials 37 418

Consumable materials 391 270

Total inventories 428 688

Inventories consist mainly of paper and printing material that is used for printing of lottery tickets.
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15. Trade Receivables

The analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

As at December 31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro)
Receivables from third parties - -
Loans to third parties - -
Receivables from lottery agencies 21,426 13,237

Bad and doubtful debts 8,207 6,425
Less provisions for bad and doubtful

debts (3,597) (2,842)
Prepayments to suppliers 363 558
Other receivables 7,997 7,302
Total Trade Receivables 34,396 24,680

Management considers that the Company's main credit risk consists of bad and doubtful debts of agents.
As at December 31, 2002 this debt amounted to €8,207 thousand. To cover this risk the Company
established a provision of €3,597 thousand. A collective warranty deposit fund that jointly secures the
agents’ obligations to the Company, amounting to € 4,613 thousand December 31, 2001, is also available
to cover bad debts. See also Note 21. Management considers these provisions to be adequate.

16. Other Current Assets and Deferred expenses
The analysis of Other Current Assets is as follows:
As at December 31, 2002 2001

(Thousands of Euro)
Amounts due from the

operator of Stihima 0 12,766
Prepaid tax 63,570 74,514
Prepaid expenses 12,599 0,00
Housing Loans to

personnel 129 290
Prepayments of

retirement benefits 335 275
Other 93 693
Total Other Current Assets 76,726 88,538

Amounts due from the operator of Stihima, for the year ended at December 31, 2001 are calculated in
accordance with the terms of the contract with its operator. According to the contract if payments to the
winners of Stihima exceed the limit of 60% of total revenues deriving from the game, then the operator
pays to OPAP the exceeding amount. For the year ended at December 31, 2002 payments to the
winners of Stihima were below the limit of 60%.

Housing loans to personnei are secured with mortgages on the property purchased.

Prepaid expenses are mainly consist of prepayments made to the Greek Football Association, and Greek
Professional Football Association for advertising and sponsoring services according to the terms of
separate contracts signed with each one of the above associations.
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17. Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at December 31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro)

Cash in hand 243 338

Cash at bank 358,878 48,682

Short-term bank deposits 0,00 322,817

Total cash and cash
equivalents 359,121 371,837

The average interest rate earned on short-term bank deposits was 3.36% in 2002, and 3,9% in 2001.
The average duration of short-term bank deposits was 7 calendar days in 2002 and 7 calendar days in
2001.

Cash from the Company's Cyprus operations is used to support those operations. The Company is
allowed to transfer this cash into Greece in the circumstances provided in the January 25, 2001
international agreement under which the Company operates in Cyprus. In particular, a cash transfer is
permitted only where the balance of cash and cash equivalents exceeds one million Cyprus pounds and
only after the transfer is approved by the Central Bank of Cyprus. The balance of cash and cash
equivalents held by the Company in Cyprus at December 31, 2002 and 2001 was € 6,426 thousand and
€9,650 thousand, respectively.

18. Share Capital

When the Company organized into a société anonyme in 1999, its articles of association provided that a
valuation committee should value its assets within one year. In accordance with that requirement, the
committee valued the Company’s assets at €33,778 thousand. Of that amount, €29,347 thousand was
capitalized through the issuance of 1.0 million shares. The balance was applied to the revaluation
reserve account within shareholders’ equity.

On December 15, 2000 the ordinary shares of the Company were split to increase the number of shares
outstanding to 100 million. Consequently, the Company’s share capital was increased by €64,270
thousand to €93,617 thousand through the issuance of 219,000,000 new shares. The €64,270 thousand
increase consisted of (a) retained earnings, (b) an amount released from the revaluation reserve account,
and (c) a portion of the consideration for the concession (€29,347 thousand). :

In 2001, the par value of the Company’s shares was increased from €0.29 to €0.30 through the
capitalization of untaxed reserves.

All the shares issued by the Company are ordinary shares.

Date Number of shares
At January 1, 2000 1,000,000
Split (December 15, 2000) 100,000,000
Share issuance (December 15, 2000) 219,000,000
December 31, 2000 319,000,000
December 31, 2001 319,000,000
December 31, 2002 319,000,000
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The total authorized number of ordinary shares was 319 million at December 31, 2001 with a par value of
€0.30 per share (€0.29 in 2000 and €29.35 in 1999). All issued shares are fully paid.

19. Reserves

The analysis of reserves is as follows:

Other

reserves

At December 31, 2000 2,815
Tax correction -
Deficit on revaluation investments -
Issue of share capital -

Transfer to reserves 31,695

At December 31, 2001 34,510

Transfer to reserves

Distribution to Shareholders (31,695)

(31,695)

At December 31, 2002 2,815

Statutory Untaxed
reserves reserves
(Thousands of Euro)
755 5,100
- 2,908
- 196
- (2,083)
12,099 2,224
12,854 8,345
10,299 -
10,299
23,153 8,345

Total

8,670
2,908
196
(2,083)
46,018
55,709

’ (21,396)

34,313

The nature and purpose of each reserve account within shareholders’ equity is as follows:

e Other reserves reflect amounts deducted from the previous years' earnings. After taxation they
are available for distribution to shareholders.

e Statutory reserves reflect the addition of a minimum of 5% of the annual net profit added each
year, subject to a maximum balance of 1/3 of the outstanding share capital. This amount is not

available for distribution.

e Untaxed reserves are drawn from untaxed earnings. Any portion of this reserve distributed to
shareholders becomes subject to income tax. The intention of the Company is not to distribute

these reserves.
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20. Deferred Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legal right to set off current tax

assets against current tax liabilities and those assets and liabilities relate to the same tax authority.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Deferred (from Deferred tax Deferred
income tax asset tax
statement) liabilities

(Thousands of Euro)
Deferred tax assets, net, as 1,215
at December 31, 2000
Deferred depreciation costs (28) 28
Settlement of previous year (82) (82)
deferred taxes
Deferred amortization costs 85 85 -
Deferred retirement benefits 1,362 1,362 -
costs
Deferred tax assets as at 1,337 2,579 28
December 31, 2001
Offsetting deferred tax liabilities - (28) -
Deferred tax assets, net, as - 2,551
at December 31, 2001
(4) 4
Accrued expenses 871 871
Deferred retirement benefits 1,719 1,719
costs
5,141 4
Offsetting deferred tax liabilities 4)
Deferred tax assets, net, as - 5,137 -

at December 31, 2002

The rate used for the calculation of deferred taxes is 35.00%, which is the applicable corporate income

tax rate.

Retirement benefit costs are deducted in determining accounting profit as service is provided by the
employee. However, in determining taxable profit, these costs are deducted when retirement benefits
are paid by the Company. This difference results in the recording of deferred tax assets as economic
benefits and will flow to the Company in the form of a deduction from taxable profits when retirement

benefits are paid.

The amounts shown in the balance sheet include the following:

As at December 31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro)

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than 12 4 28

months

Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 4,270 2,516

months
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21, Borrowings

The Company’s outstanding loans have the following maturities:

As at December 31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro)

Less than one year 39,036 37,595

One year to five years 83,681 125,385

More than five years - -

Total borrowings 122,717 162,980

The weighted average effective interest rates were 4,73% at December 31, 2002, and 5,80% at
December 31, 2001. The Company’s loans are floating rate, consisting of a spread over six - or three-
month Euribor ranging from 0.45% to 0.95%, depending on the loan.

The repayment terms of the loans are the following:

Number of
Loan instalilments Instaliments First instaliment
(Thousands of Euro)
Loan of €52,825 9 Semi-annual December 31, 2000
Loan of €20,543 9 Semi-annual June 30, 2000
Loan of €29,347 100 Weekly January 1, 2001
Loan of €29,347 200 Weekly January 1, 2002
Loan of €29,347 11 Semi-annual January 1, 2003
Loan of €44,021 9 Semi-annual June 30, 2003

22. Other Liabilities — Non-current

As at December 31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro)

Warranty deposits from lottery agents 4,989 3,582

Total Other Liabilities 4,989 3,582

Warranty deposits from lottery agents represent amounts placed on deposit to jointly secure obligations
of the agents.

The warranty deposits are repaid to agents only when they cease to act as agents.

23. Trade and Other Payables — Current

As at December 31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro)
Suppliers 32,029 13,828
Prize payouts to the lottery and betting winners 50,577 53,858
Liabilities to the Hellenic Republic 0,00 38,063
Dividends payable 98 137,170
Other payables 11,230 15,985
Total trade and other payables — current 93,934 258,904
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24. Employee Benefit Plans

A fump sum benefit is payable on termination of service equal, for each year of service, to one-fourteenth
of the employee's total compensation during the employee's last year of service, plus a proportion of
overtime pay and of the allowance payable based on the years of service. The liabilities for these
retirement benefits are unfunded, except to the extent the Company prepays retirement benefits to each
employee. See Note 16 and paragraph B (ix) under Accounting Policies.

On service rendered up to December 31, 2002 the present value of retirement benefits, based on
benefits committed under the terms of the plan and using projected salary levels, is €19,242 thousand.
On service rendered up to December 31, 2001 the number is €14,331 thousand.

The current service costs for 2002 and 2001 were €4,911 thousand and €5,758 thousand, respectively.

The present value of retirement benefits at the projected date of retirement of the Company's current
employees was, at December 31, 2002, €32,273 thousand and at December 31, 2001, €22,321 thousand.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at December 31, 2002 are:

Discount rate: 4.5%
Expected rate of salary increases: 3.50%.

25. Provisions

Provision for Other Total

Date bad debts provisions

(Thousands of Euro)
December 31, 2001 2,842 1,815 4,657
Additional provisions 3 3
Reclassification 752 (752)
Additional provisions 65,480 65,480
Utilized during the year 0 (1,063) (1,063)
December 31, 2002 3,597 65,480 69,077

The amount of € 65,480 thousand classified under “Other provisions” is intended to cover damages
incurred from an arbitration proceeding against the Company made by the operator of Stihima with
regard to the introduction of horserace betting as an additional betting game.
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26. Cash Flow

a) Cash flows generated from operations:

For the Period ended

December 31, 2002 2001
(Thousands of Euro)
Net profit 206,108 241,198

Adjustments for:

Income tax 117,878 135,033

Deferred tax (2,586) 115,293 (1,337) 133,696
Depreciation 7,222 6,777
Amortization 17,223 17,121
Interest income (12,273) (8,589)
Interest expense 6,758 10,362
Changes in working capital

Inventories at the beginning 688 977

Inventories at the end (427) 261 (688) 289
Trade and other receivables (2,670) 48,575
Payables 11,176 1,734
Provisions 65,508 44
Retirement benefits 4,911 5,949
Non-cash charge on income

statement (1,086) 636
Cash generated from operations 418,431 456,520

The analysis of cash and cash equivalents is presented in Note 17.
D. Other Disclosures
1. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities:

There are no material claims by third parties against the company with the exception of those set forth in
a letter by our legal advisor Mr. N. Tomaras, which pertain to the following: a) Lawsuits filed by
G.Kymionis, B.Kymionis and E. Karayianni for the amounts of €88.041, €88.041 and €27.806.309
respectively the outcome of which is expected to be in favour of the Company according to the legal
advisor. b) labour cases (typographers and other extraordinary personnel) involving the amount of
€170.212 which are going to be permanently settled and ¢) an appeal to the Arbitration on 7.5.2001 by
INTRALOT S.A. against OPAP S.A. requesting compensation for a positive loss. With regard to the appeal
the Three-member Arbitration Court issued the 2/2003 decision granting the operator of the game “Pame
Stihima” the amount of €37.417.000 for every year that the commencement of the horse and greyhound
racing betting has delayed since 29.3.2001. According to this decision OPAP S.A. must pay the above
amount for a period commencing from 29.3,2001 until the horserace betting begins to operate or until
the relevant contract expires (28.1.2007). The decision does not include any arrangement for interest on
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deferred payment. The amount which must be paid based on the above decision from 1.1.2003 to
28.1.2007 is €152.786.083,33 while the amount pertaining to the period from 29.3.2001 to 31.12.2002 is

€65.480.557,59.

The contingent liability for compensation since 31.12,2002 and until the expiration of the contract
amounting to €152.786.083,33 depends upon the start or failure to start the horse and greyhound racing
betting as well as on the outcome of the suit filed by OPAP S.A. with a view to rescinding the decision of
the Arbitration Court which, according to a letter by our firm’s Legal Department is estimated to be
positive for the Company.

The provision registered in the accounting books pertains to the loss that may be incurred as a result of
the final settlement of the difference.

Further to a decision by the Arbitration Court the company must pay a compensation amounting to
€37,417 thousand annually starting from 01/03/2001 until 31/01/2007 to the company which has
undertaken to operate the betting. Regarding the above decision the legal department of OPAP S.A. will
request from the Athens Court of Appeal the rescission of the decision. It will also request the
suspension of the decision until the case is tried by the above mentioned court.

In a letter sent to the management of OPAP S.A. the legal department estimates that the appeal’s
outcome is likely to be in favour of the company. In that context the management has decided to charge
the operating results of the period ended 31/12/2002 with an amount equal to the compensation that the
company would have to pay as at the balance sheet date if the decision of the Arbitration Court was to
be followed, namely with the amount of €65,482 thousand (see also note 4). The company’s
management considers that this amount is adequate to cover any risk related to that litigation.

The Greek tax authorities have not audited the Company for the year 2002. At the time of any tax audit,
additional liabilities may result, which management estimates will not substantially impact total liabilities.
For this reason a relevant provision has not been established.

2. Commitments
Contracts for operating Stihima:

The Company has entered into arrangements with Intralot SA granting it the exclusive right to operate
certain elements of Stihima for 7 years beginning in 1999. Under the terms of this agreement, the
contractor selects the betting events, sets the odds, prints the tickets, carries out advertisement,
monitors the operation of Stihima and is responsibie for the risk management of Stihima. All future fixed
odds and non-fixed odds betting games are also expected to be operated by the same contractor, under
the agreement, including athletics, horseracing (non-domestic) and greyhound racing. Notwithstanding
these agreements, the Company retains the exclusive management of the games and participates
actively in many tasks related to their operation. In addition, the contractor trains the Company’s staff in
all matters relating to the operation of Stihima, as required under the terms of the agreement.

The Company also has the following other commitments:
a) Obligation for the supply of printing paper and coupons.

OPAP has signed contracts for the purchase of paper for printing coupons for games and a contract for
the purchase of paper coupons for specific games. :

b) Maintenance — Operation of information technology department.

The Company’s central data processing system is maintained by Intracom S.A. pursuant to an agreement
dated February 1997. Under the agreement, Intracom S.A. is required to provide and maintain
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hardware, central system software, the LOTOS (Lottery Operating System) lottery software platform
which was developed by Intraiot S.A., agency terminals and to develop operational procedures relating to
the data processing system. The term of the agreement varies with the service provided. For
maintenance services in respect of hardware and central software systems, the term extends to 2007. In
respect of the provision of the existing software system, agency terminals and continued development of
operating procedure, Intracom S.A.’s obligation to provide services extends to February 2004,

c¢) Development and Maintenance of software for games of EXTRA 5 and SUPER 3

Intracom S.A. is required to provide and maintain the software for the operation of the numeric games
EXTRA 5 and SUPER 3. The term of the agreement varies with the service provided and the contract
extends for 10 years starting at May 25th, 2002.

d) Development and Maintenance of ERP software

Intracom S.A. is required to provide and maintain ERP related to management and financial services. The
maintenance is extended to a period of five years starting at May 25, 2002, and the cost varies with the

service provided.

e) As at December 31, 2002 the Company is a party to an operating leasing agreement relating to
transporting vehicles. Future minimum payments under this agreement are as follows:

As at December 31, 2003 2002
(Thousands of Euro)

Less than one year 193,825 193,825

One to five years 516,866 -

More than five years

f) As at December 31, 2002 the Company is a party to a lease agreement relating to administration
building. Future minimum payments under this agreement are as follows:

As at December 31, 2003 2002
(Thousands of Euro)

Less than one year 2,786 2,786

One to five years 6,965 -

More than five years
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XPHMATIZTHPIO ASIQN AOHNQN A.E.
ANAKOINQZH NEPI ZXOAIAZMOY OIKONOMIKQN / K4-02-021
AOTIZTIKQN KATAZTAZEQN

AMNO: OPIrANIZMOZ MPOMNQZITIKQN ArQNQN NMOAOZPAIPOY A.E.
NPOZ: Xpnuatiompio Abiov ABnviov A.E. ZookAéoug 10, 105 59, ABrAva
YNOWH: YMNHPEZIA NAPAKOAOCYOHZHE ETAIPIKQN NPASEQN & ENHMEPQ3H EIZHIMENQN ETAIPION

EAANVIKO Keipevo Avakoiveong /ED

OEMA: Avakoivwon nepi oxoAiaopo OIKOVOUIKGYV / AOYIOTIKOV KATAOTACEWY \
ANAKOINQXH < P
\g\ﬁ &
<) RECEN
//

ONAN A.E.
NP 11 2003
AEATIO TYNOY 2
&,
EFKPIZH OIKONOMIKQN KATAZTAZEQN XPHEHE 2002 THE ONAM A.E. A

To AloiknTiké ZupBoUhio oTn cuvedpiaor) Tou oTig 20/02/2003 eVEKPIVE TIG OIKOVOUIKEG K TAOEIC YIa TNV XPNON
Tou 2002 ( Aoyromikf nepiodog 1/1/2002 -31/12/02). N

O KUKAOG gpyaciv napouciace auinon oc nocooTd 9,35 % kal aviiABe oTo nood Twv 1.968 ex. EYPQ, évavn 1799
ek, EYPQ Tou 2001.

Tnv HeyaAUTEPN OUPBOAR £iXe To naryvidl <<MNAME ZTOIXHMA>> ol nwANCEIG Tou onoiou aviABav ora 1.511 ex.
EYPQ, évavn 1.314 ek. EYPQ To 2001 napoumdZovrag avinon 15%. Eniong and Ta dAAa naixvidia Tng eTaipeiag, To
MPOMO onueiwoe avgnon 4%, PE TIG NWARCEIG va avépXOovTal OTO NOCO TV 66 £k, EYPQ, évavn 64 €k. EYPQ To
2001, 70 AOTTO onyeiwoe alinon 6% pe Tig NWANCEIG va avépyovTal oTa 80 ek. EYPQ, évavm 76 k. EYPQ To 2001,
gro NPOTO o1 nwANCEIG aviiABay ota 53 ek. EYPQ, évavn 52 ex. EYPQ To 2001, auEnuéveg K

ard 1%, oTto MPOMOIKOA o1 nwAnoeig aviAbav ora 2 ex. EYPQ,0ra idia enineda pe autd Tou 2001 kal TEAOG OTO
TZOKEP o1 nwAfjoeig aviiA@av oTa 221 ek. EYPQ, évavm 291 gk. EYPQ To 2001, onuei®vovTag NTWaorn g€ NogooTo
24%.

Z€ OT1I apopa Ta dUo véa naixvidia extra 5 kat super 3, nou siofixénoav omv ayopd aTig 25 NoguBpiou 2002, ol
nNwWARCEIS Toug aviABav oTa 33,7 ex. eupw (20,3 ek.gupw T0 Super 3 kat 13,4 ex. To ETRA 5), Eengpvmvrag Tig
apXIKEG EKTIPATEIG.

Ta pixra képdn, npo anooBéoewv auEnbnkav kata 12,42% kal avijABav ara 466,6 ex. EYPQ, évavn 415 ex. EYPQ
70 2001.

Ta Aeimoupyikd képdn (Npd anooBecewy, XPNHATOOIKOVOLIK®WV KAl EKTAKTWY ANOTEAEOHATWV) aviiAbav ora 407,5
ek. EYPQ, évavm 399,7 ex. EYPQ 70 2001, napouaalovrag augnon o nocoato 2%.

Ta kaBapd anoteAéouara (képdn) npo @opwv aviABav ara 318,6 ek. EYPQ, évavn 374 k. EYPQ To 2001
napouaiaZovrag peinon 14,82%.

©a npénel va onueiwdei, 6T N PeEiwon auT TwV KEPSWV NPo Pdpwv eival anoTéAeoua TG enifdpuvong Twv
eXTAXTWV anoTeAEoNaTLY, HE Nood 10,7 gk. EYPQ, e8amiag Tou axnuaTiopoU npoéBAeyng anolnuiwong eEddou and
Vv unnpecia Adyw ouvragiodoTnong Tou npocwnikoU, nou unfpxe oTig 31/12/2002 oro 100% Tng nAfpoug
anofnuinong Ady®d dnoX®pnong Tou Npogwnikol Kal oTov aXnHaTiond npoPAEYnG noool 65,5 €. EUPW OUUPWVA
pE TNV andgaon Tou TpipeAoUg AiarmmmikoU AIKGoTnpiou Kai yia To Xpoviké didomua éwg 31/12/2002.

To Aloiknmikd ZupBoUMo Tng ETaipeiag, ano@aoioe va npoTeivel ornv TakTikf Fevikf ZuvéAeuon Twv Merdxwv TNV
dlavopr} EKTAKTWwY anoBeUaTIK®V NPonyoUuHEVWY ETOV Mool 31,7 eK. EUPQ SI0UOPPOVOVTAG TO NPOTEIVOUEVO NPOG
Siavopn auvoAikd PEpigpa oTo Nogod Twv 213.730.000 gupw.

Me Tnv npoteivouevn diavopn, To LépICUa ava PeToxr avepxeral oTa 0,67 eupw. MeTé b€ Tnv agaipeon Tou
npopepiouaTog Twv 0,27 Up® ava PeToxr, Nou He TNV andgaon 21/07-11-2002 Tou A.Z. 380nKe oTOUG PETOXOUG
ong 15/01/2003, To undAoino Pepioya ava peroxr| diapoppwveral ata 0,40 gupw.

Me Bdon To napandvw NPOTEIVOUEVO PEPIOUA, N HEPICUATIKA anddoan Siapop@VeTal, HE BAon TNV TpEXouoa TR
NG METOXNG, O enineda uynAoTepa Tou 7%.

Ma o 2003, n eTaipeia NpooBAénovTag oMV NEPAITEPW EViOXUON TNnG OE0NG TNG OTNV GYOPa TWV TUXEPGV
naixvdiwv, 8a €i0dyel éva véo apiBuolaxeio, To KINO, naixvidi nou eknipdral 6T 8a guuBaArAel atnyv augnon Twv
nNwAfCE®Y TS H akpIBrg nuepounvia eicaywyrg Tou naixvidiol 6a kaBopioBei apol ouvekniunBei n nopeia Twv
uQIgTauEvVLY naixviSiov kal edIkGTEpa Tou extra 5 kal super 3 riou fdn éxouv EeNepAcel TG apXIKEG NPOPAEWEIG
Hac. H eTaipeia agiohoyei TRV eniAoyr] Tou Xpovou eicaywyrg Tou KINO eite oo TéAog Tou B’

TpIUAVOU EITE HETA TO KaAoKaip! Tou 2003.

TéAog, ong 12/02/2003 uneypapn véa AlaxpaTikn Zupgwvia, peragl g EAANVIKAG ka1 Kunpiakng AnpokpaTiag, pe
Tnv onoia emirpéneTal nj CUVEXION TnG SpacTnplonoinong ™ etaipeiag oTnv Kinpo oe gnixeipnpankii Baon.

Ta Baoika onueia Tng véag AtakpaTikig ZuyQuwviag eival;

“ H idpuon péoa oToug ENOUEVOUG 6 pRveS BuyaTpikng eTaipeiag otnv Konpo (OMNAN A.E. KYRPOY), n onoia 8a
BieEayel OAa Ta naixvidia pe Toug idloug KavoviopoUg dnw¢ otnv EAAGSA, EKTOG TOU OTOIXANATOG,.

“ H anédoon otnv ONAN A.E. evdg nogooTtol 10% nepinou eni Tou guvoAikol Tdipou Twv naixvidiov ormv Kinpo
(1o 2002 ol nwARCEI TwV NaixVIdiwv TNg ONAM A.E.otnv KUnpo, aviiABav ora 33 ex. eup® nepinouv).

" H napakpdTtnon and Tnv BuyaTpiki eTaipeia nocoaTol 10% yia THY KGAUWN TV ASITOUPYIK®V TG danavev

“ And Tov ouvoAikd TZipo, UETA TNV a@aipeon Tou nocoaTou 10%, nou Ba anodideral ornv OMNAN A.E, Tou nogocToU
10%, nou Ba napakparteital and Tnv Buyarpikn yia Ta AsiToupyikd TnG £é£08a, Tou NogooTol Nou GvTIOTOIXEI OTOUG
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VIKNTEG TWV NaiXvISiV Kal Twv NPaKTopwy, To undAoino nood 8a anodidsral ornv Kunpiakn Anpoxkparia.

" Mg Ta 2 npwTa xpdvia and TNV ePapuoyi] TG SUPPWVIag, To NOGo oY avTioToIXEl 0To NogoaTd 10%, nou Ba
anodiderai arnv OMNATN A.E. 8a xpnowonoinBei yia Tnv XpnuatodéTnon enevdlcewv and v ONAM A.E. KYTPOY om
MeyaAdvnoo.

TEAOG EVNUEPOVOUHE TO ENEVIUTIKO KOIVD OTI, 01 0IKOVOUIKES KATAOTAOEIG £Xouv cuvTaxeei kar pe Ta Algdvn
AoyigTikd NpoTUna Kat givar dlaBéoiyeg aTa ypageia TNG eTalpeiag yia KGOe evBIAPEPOPEVO.

ABnva, 27/02/2003
TO AIOIKHTIKO ZYMBOYAIO
AyyAiko Ofua

AyyAiko Keipevo Avakoivwaong

ZNHEIVOEIG

MapakaAouye yia ™ dnpogiguon ¢ napolgag yvworonoinong oro Huepioio AeATio TIH®V Npog EVHEPWOT) TOU
koivoU. BEBAI®VOUKE pnTA Ka1 avenipUAAKTa 0Tt OAG TA OTOIXEIQ KAl OI NANPOPOPIES NOU ANOGTEAAOUYE €ival
anoAUTwg NAfPN, akpIPn kai enikaipa.

lNa Tnv Eraipia

ZACHOS M A
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ATHENS STOCK EXCHANGE S.A. 4 A
NOTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY FOR DIVIDEND / PAYMENT OF{
(Based on Article 3 and Article 5 of P.D. 350/1985) AN

FROM: THE GREEK ORGANIZATION OF FOOTBALL PROGNOSTICS S.A.

TO: The Athens Stock Exchange S.A. 10, Sofokleous St. 105 59 Athens

C/O: INSPECTORATE OF CORPORATE DEEDS & UPDATES CONCERNING LISTED

COMPANIES

SUBJECT: Notification of clipping of right of dividend / payment of dividend
ANNOUNCEMENT

OPAP S.A. announces that according to resolution No 23/19-11-2002 of its BoD, item 13, the company
is going to distribute an interim dividend amounting to 0.27 euro for the current fiscal year.

Beneficiaries of such interim dividend are the investors holding shares of the company at the end of the
meeting of 31/12/2002.

As of Thursday 2/1/2003 shares shall be traded in the A.S.E. without any right to the above dividend.

Payment of the dividend shall be made by crossed checks, which will be sent to the beneficiaries as of
15/1/2003.

Any of the shareholders who have not cashed the check by 15/6/2003, can collect the interim dividend
only from the company’s offices at 2, Kolonou St. (tel. 5236203).

In case of loss or non-receipt of the check, shareholders are kindly requested to get in contact with the
company’s offices (2, Kolonou St., Athens, tel. 5236203, Shareholders Service)
Athens, 20/11/2002

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OPAP S.A.
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XPHMATIZTHPIO ASIQN AGHNON A.E.
FNQZTOMOIHEH AMOKOMHZE AIKAIRMATOZ MEPIZMATOZ / | y4.01-027

NAHPQMHZ MEPIZMATOz
(Baoer Apfpou 3 ka1 ApBpou 5 Tou MNpoedpikol AiaTaypaTog 350/1985)

ANO: OPIANIZMOZ NPOTNQZTIKQN ArQNQN NOAOZ®AIPOY A.E.

nrPox: XpnuaTiompio Afiwv ABnvav A.E. ZopokAéoug 10, 105 59, ABrva

YMOWH: YNMHPEZIA NAPAKOAOYOHZHZ ETAIPIKQN NPAZEQN & ENHMEPQZH EIZHIMENQN ETAIPIQN

OEMA: fvwaTonoinan anokonrg SikaiwpaTog pepiouartog / nAnpwiig pepiopaTog
ANAKOINQXH

EAANVIKO Keipgevo Avakoivwong

Zag anooTEAOUNE aVaKoivwoTn nou agopd oTnyv andégaon Tng eraipeiag pag yia Tnv NAHPQMH NPOMEPIZMATOZ..H
avakoivwan 8a dnpooieudei oTig 21/11/2002 onig epnuepideg EAcubepoTunia, 'EBvog, EAelBepog TUNoG, Néa,
Xpnuamompio, Nautepnopikr, Huepnoia kai Képdog. ANAKOINQZH FIA THN MAHPQMH NMPOMEPIZMATOZ XPHZHZ
2002

H ONAN A.E. avakotvovel 6T cUNpwva HE andPaan Tou AioiknmkoU Tng ZupBouAiou N ETaIpeEia NPoXwPa o€
Siavoun npopepiopaTog Uyoug 0,27 gupw yia Tn TpEXouaa Xpriaon.

AixaioUxo1 Tou npoyepiopaTog gival 4go1 KATEXOUV UETOXES TNG €Talpeiag atn AREN TnG ouvedpiaong Tng 31/12/2002.

Ano6 T Népntn 2/1/2003 o1 yeToxég Ba SianpayparelovTal oTo Xpnuanormpio ABiov ABnvav Xwpig To dikaiwpa
AMYng Tou napanavw NPOUEPITHATOG,.

H nAnpwpn Tou npouepiopatog Ba yivel e diypappeg enrayeg, ol onoieg 6a anograAolv oToug dikaioUxoug and
15/1/2003.

‘0Ogol and Toug K.K. UETBXoUG Bev etonpafouv Tnv enimayn péxpt 15/6/2003, pnopolv va nAnpwvovTal To
npopépiopa povo and Ta ypageia Tng eTatpeiag, KoAwvou 2 (TnA. 5236203).

Ze nepinTwon anmA&iag i pn napaAaBng TG enrrayng, NapakaAoUvTal of K.K. METOX0! ONWG ENIKOIVWVICOUV LE Ta
vypageia Tng eTaipeiag (KoAwvol 2, ABrva, TnA. 5236203, Ynnpeaia MeToxwv).

AOHNA, 20/11/2002

TO AIOIKHTIKO £YMBOYAIO
AyyAiko O¢pa

AyyAIkO Keipevo Avakoivwong

ZNHEIVOEIG

NMapakaAolpe yia TN dnpogisuon TG Napoloag yvworonoinang oto Huepfoio Aektio TiH®Y Npog evnpépworn Tou
kotvoU. BEBaivoupe pnTa Kal avenipUAaKTa 6Ti 0AG Ta GTOIXEIO KAl OF NANPOQPOPIEC NOU aNooTEAAOUYE Eivai
anoAUTWG AAfpN, akpiBn Kal enikaipa.

MNa Tnv Eraipia

ZACHOS M A
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ATHENS STOCK EXCHANGE S.A.
COMMENTS ON PUBLICATIONS s
(Based on Article 5 par. 5 of Presidential Decree No 350/1985 and Article 5 par:s

Markets Commission Decree 5/204/14.11.2000) ‘x\
hY
N\
FROM: THE GREEK ORGANIZATION OF FOOTBALL PROGNOSTICS S.A.
TO: The Athens Stock Exchange S.A. 10, Sofokleous St. 105 59
C/0O: INSPECTORATE OF CORPORATE DEEDS & UPDATES CONCERNING LISTED
COMPANIES

SUBJECT: Confirmation — Clarifications upon publications
ANNOUNCEMENT

The Management of OPAP S.A., in order to respond to continuing rumors circulating in the press and
sports fans, concerning the issue of the T.V. rights of the Football Fun Club S.A.s, announces the

following:

The Company on its own initiative undertook this year’s sponsoring of professional football amounting
to 5,690,000 Euro, in the context of reciprocals. Moreover the Professional Football Association
(ESAPE) and the various CLUBS (PAE), will receive according to sports legislation from OPAP S.A.,
financial support from the revenues of PROPO and PROPOGOAL amounting to about 10,000,000 euro
(3.5 billion GDR). The overall estimated expense of OPAP S.A. in professional football, for this year,
is about 15,700,000 Euro (5.3 billion GDR). In this way OPAP S.A. has proven in practice, through its
contribution, its strong interest regarding professional football. No other form of sponsoring, for any
reason, has been agreed upon with ESAPE. As far as the advertising of OPAP S.A.’s products is
concerned, in any case and for any T.V. channel, the ratings of every channel are taken into account as
well as the time zone within which each event is broadcast and the interest of the viewers in that event.
In any case the company’s advertising policy is fixed and is subject to the laws of the market. OPAP
S.A. has not concluded any agreement with any T.V. channel conceming the support and promotion of
broadcasting football matches in the context of professional championship. The only criterion for any
advertising and business activity that OPAP S.A. might undertake would be in the interests of its
shareholders. OPAP S.A. has repeatedly proposed and made publicly known its desire for a joint effort
in organizing business activities (e.g. ticketing) together with ESAPE for mutual benefit, thus declaring
openly its interest for the progress and support of professional football.

BY OPAP S.A.

Please note:

We kindly request this announcement to be published in the Daily Official List, in order to inform the
public. We expressly and unreservedly attest that all data and information sent, is fully complete,
accurate and updated.

On behalf of the Company,
ZACHOSM A
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XPHMATIZTHPIO ASIQN AOHNQN A.E.

2XOAIAZMOZ AHMOZIEYMATQN K4-01-025
(Bace ApBpou 5 nap. 5 Tou MNA 350/1985 ka1 Anogaong EmiTponiig Kepaiaiayopag ApBpo 5 nap.
1a. 5/204/14.11.2000 )

ANO: OPIANIZMOZ MPOMNQEITIKQN ArQNQN NOAOZIGAIPOY A.E.
npPOXx: Xpnuariompio Afilov ABnvav A.E. ZogokAéoug 10, 105 59, ABrva
YNOWH: YMNHPEZIA MAPAKOAOYOHZHZ ETAIPIKQN MPAZEQN & ENHMEPQZIH EIXHIMENQN ETAIPIQN
OEMA: EnmiBeBaiwon - Aleukpiviigelg eni dnuogisupdTov
INQEZTOIIOIHEH

EAANVIKO Keipevo Avakoivwong
AEATIO TYNOY

H Aioiknon tTng ONAN AE, pera m guvexI{Ouevn pnuoAoyia, nou anacyoA&i Tov TUMO ka1 To @iAadAo kovo yia To
0épa TV TnAsonTIKGOV diIkaiwudTwy Tov NAE, dnAwvel Ta gEAG:

H eraipia £xe) avalaBel, pe npwtoBoulia TG, T PENVN Xopnyia Tou enayyeApanikol nodoogaipou Uyoug
5.690.000 Eupw, gro nAdioo Tng avranodoTmikotnTag. Eniong o EZANME xai o1 NMAE 8a AdBouv, oULQWVA LE TOV
adAnTiIkd vouo and Tnv ONATM AE, oikovopikn gvioxuon and Ta égoda Tou NMPOMO ka1 NPONMONKOA Uyoug nepinou
10.000.000 Eupw (3,5 81 3px.). H ouvoAikn ekTigopevn danavn Tng ONAM AE agTo enayyeApamnko noddogaipo, yia
™ eIV Xpovia, givar nepinou 15.700.000 Eupw (5,3 Big dpx.). Mg auTtd Tov Tpdno n ONAN AE éxel an

od¢iEer EunpakTa, PE TN CUVEICPOPA TNG, TO EVOIAPEPOV TG OTO ENAYYEALATIKO noddogaipo. Kapia GAAN popri
Xopnyiag, yia onoiodrinoTe Adyo dev éxel ouppwvnBei pe Tov EZANME. Z€ O,T apopd oTn S1aQRuIon TwV NpoidvTwv
G OMAN AE, ot kABe nepinTwon kal yia onoiodAnoTe TnAeonTikd orabud, AapBavovTal undywn n CUVOAIKR
aKpOauaTIKOTNTA ToU TNAEONTIKOU oTadpouU, n {ovn aKpoapaTikoTATAG, OTNV onoia avapeTadideTar To kade
TNAEONTIKG YEYOVOG Kal TO EVOIAQEPOV TwV TNAEOEATWY YIQ TO YEYOVOG auTo. Z& kA€ nepinTwon n dragpnui

OTIKF} NOAITIKA TNG £Talpiag gival dedopEvn Kat UNOKEITAI OTOUG KAVOVEG TG ayopac. H OMAN AE Sev €xel cuvawel
Kapia oupgwvia pe kavéva TnAeonTikd oTabud yia Tnv evioyuorn ThG avapeTadoang nodooQaipikwv aymvmy Tou
enayyehpankoU npwTadAriparog. Ta Tnv ONANM AE yvapovag yia onoiadfinoTe S1a@nuIoTIKR Kal ENIXEIPNHATIKE
SpaotnpidTnTa €ival To CUPPEPOV TV WETOXWV TNG. H OMAN AE éxel enavelAnppéva npoTeivel kai e§ayyeiler ™
BoUAnom TNG yia TNV and Koivol opyavwarn emXeipnuankav dpdoewv (n.x. ticketing) pe Tov EX

ANE npog apoiBaio 0peAog, SnAdvovTag €101 TO EVOIGPEPOV TNG YIA TN HETENEITA NOPEIQ KAl EVIOXUOT) Tou
enayyeApaTikol nodoopaipou.

ATO THN ONAN AE
AyyAiko Oéua

AyyAiko Keipevo Avakoivoong

ZNUEIROCEIG

MapakaAoupe yia T dnuooieuon Tng napoloag yvwoTonoinong oto Hueprolo AeATio Ti®V NPOG EVAUEPWOT] TOU
KoivoU. BeBaiwvouys pnTd kal avenipUAAKTa 0TI 0Ad TA OTOIXEIQ KA1 Of MANPOPOPIEG Nou anogTEAAOULE eival
anoAUTwe nARpn, akpiBn xal enikaipa.

Na rnv Eraipia

ZACHOS M A
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ATHENS STOCK EXCHANGE S.A.
ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION (NOT PROVIDED IN
OTHER CATEGORIES)
(Based on Article 5 par. 5a of Presidential Decree 350/1985)

FROM: THE GREEK ORGANIZATION OF FOOTBALL PROGNOSTICS S.A.

TO: The Athens Stock Exchange S.A. 10, Sofokleous St. 105 59
C/O: INSPECTORATE OF CORPORATE DEEDS & UPDATES CONCERNING LISTED
COMPANIES

SUBJECT:  Announcement of other important issues.

ANNOUNCEMENT

OPAP S.A. has announced to its investors that it intends to announce the financial results concerning
the third quarter of the current fiscal year on Friday, November 8, 2002, within the timetables set forth
by Law. The Management of the Organization also announces that on the same day there will be a
conference call to provide information to investors and analysts, during which the executives of the
Organization will analyze the financial results and the most recent corporate developments.

Please note:

We kindly request this announcement to be published in the Daily Official List, in order inform the
public. We expressly and unreservedly attest that all data and information sent, is fully complete,
accurate and updated.

On behalf of the Company,

ZACHOSM A
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XPHMATIZTHPIO ASIQN AGHNQN A.E.
ANAKOINQZH AAAQN ZHMANTIKQN FEFONOTON (AEN | 44 01063

NMPOBAETIONTAI ZE AAAEZ KATHIOPIEZ)
(Baoel ApBpou 5 nap. 5a Tou MN.A. 350/1985)

ANO: OPFANIZMOZX NPOMNQZTIKQN ArQNQN NOAOZOAIPOY A.E.
NnPOZ: Xpnuamiompio A§iov ABnvov A.E. Zogpokiéoug 10, 105 59, ABrva
YNOWH: YNHPEZIA NMAPAKOAOYOHZIHZ ETAIPIKQN NPAZEQN & ENHMEPQZH EIZHTMENGQN ETAIPIQN
OEMA: Avakoivwan AAAWV ZnUavTikeov FeyovaTwv
ANAKOINQXH

EAANVIKO Keipevo Avakoivwong

H ONAN AE gvnuepmvel To eEnevduTikd KOIVO NwE NPOTIBETal va NpoXwpoEl OTNV avaKoivwon TwV anoTEAEONATWV
nou agopouyv To TPiTo TpiuNvo NG Tpéxouaag Xprong Ty MNapaoxeun 8 NoguBpiou Tou 2002, evrdg Twv opIoBEvTwLV
ano To Nopo xpovodiaypappdTwv.H Aloixnon Tou OpyaviopoU avakolvve Eniong Nwe Tnv id1o uépa Ba
npaypaTonoindei evnuépwon Tou eNEVSUTIKOU KOIVOU Kai Twv avaAutov, PEow conference call, kata Tnv onoia Ba
npaypaTonomBei avaAuon Twv anoTeAECUATWV ano Ta oTeAéxn Tou Opyaviouou, eve 8a napouciacTouv Kai o
TeheuTaies eTaIpIkéG eENIEEIG.

AyyAikd Oépa

AyyAikd Keigevo Avakoivwong

ZNUEINOCEIG

Napakahouye yia Ty dnuooicuon ¢ napolaag yvworonoinang ato Huephioo Aektio Tiuwv NPog EVIHEPWOT] TOU
koivoU. BeBaimvoupe pnTd ka1 avenipUAGKTa OTI 6AG TG OTOIXEIQ KA1 0l NANPOPOpPIEG NOU anooTEAAOUUE sivai
anoAUTwG NAAPN, akpiBi kai enikaipa.

fia Tnv Evaipia

ZACHOS M A
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ATHENS STOCK EXCHANGE S.A.
ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION
OTHER CATEGORIES)
(Based on Article 5 par. Sa of P.D. 350/1985)

FROM: THE GREEK ORGANIZATION OF FOOTBALL PROGNOSTICS S.A.
TO: The Athens Stock Exchange S.A. 10, Sofokleous St. 105 59
C/O: INSPECTORATE OF CORPORATE DEEDS & UPDATES

CONCERNING LISTED COMPANIES
SUBJECT:  Announcement of other important issues.

ANNOUNCEMENT
OPAP S.A. through an announcement to the Athens Stock Exchange announces the following:

By Announcement of 19/06/02 of the Decision of the Interministerial Commission of Privatizations,
during the offering of the second bloc of the company’s shares, the seller (the Hellenic Republic)
provided a retention incentive as follows:

“The seller will distribute one free company share, of its ownership, for every ten shares, to the
Investors of the Public Offering and Private Placement, provided that the Investors shall maintain, for a
period of 6 months, starting from the date of registration of the transfer of the Shares to the Central
Depository of Securities and up to the overall number of 200 free shares per Investor.”

Given that the transfer of shares to of the Private Investors participating in the Public Offering and
Private Placement were registered with the Central Depository of Securities on 17/07/02, beneficiaries
of such incentive are those who held shares at the end of the trading session of the Athens Stock
Exchange on 16/01/2003.

The date of crediting of the free Shares to the Accounts of the beneficiary Investors in the
Dematerialised Shares System will be announced by the company.

Athens, 07/01/2003

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Please note:

We kindly request this announcement to be published in the Daily Official List, in order to inform the

public. We expressly and unreservedly attest that all data and information sent, is fully complete,
accurate and updated.
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XPHMATIZTHPIO ASIQN AGHNQN A.E.
ANAKOINQZH AAAQN SHMANTIKQN FEFONOTON (AEN | 401 063

MPOBAENMONTAI ZE AAAEZ KATHIOPIEZX)
(Baoel ApBpou 5 nap. 5a Tou M.A. 350/1985)

ANO: OPFANIZMOZ NPOMNQZITIKQN ArQNQN NOAOZIQAIPOY A.E.
nPOx: XpnpaTioTripio A§iwv ABnvav A.E. ZogpokAgoug 10, 105 59, Alrjva
YNOWH: YMNHPEZIA NAPAKOAOYOHXHZX ETAIPIKQN MNPAZEQN & ENHMEPQIH EIZHIFMENQN ETAIPIQN
GEMA: Avaxoivwon AAwY Znpavrikov FeyovoTwv
ANAKOINQXH
EAANVIKO Keipevo Avakoiveong
ONAN A.E.
ANAKOINQZH

H ONAI A.E. pe avakoivwor] Tng npog 1o X.A.A. yvwoTronoiel Ta akdAouba:

Me Tnv and 19/06/02 andgaon TG Alunoupyikfg ENITponfig ANoKpaTikonoifoewy, KaTta Tnv 81adgon Tou dsuTtépou
NAKETOU METOXWV TNG ETAIPEiag, NApEiXeETo KivnTpo diakpatnong and Tov nwAnT (EAANvIkG Anpoaio) wg eENG:

« O nwAnmg Oa diaveipel 1 dwpedv PeTOXN TG ETAIpEiag, xuplc'rrn'r('lc; Tou, ava 10 peToxeég, oroug ISiImTeEG EnevduTic
™mg Anuomaq Eyypa@ng ka1 Tng IS1wTIkAG Tonoea'nong, unodé v npounoeeon 6T o1 EnevduTtég Ba Siakpatfioouy Tig
MeTOXEG QUTEG, yia XPOVIKA neploﬁo 6 ynvov, ané Tnv NUeEpounvia KATaxwpnong ™e HeTaBifaong Twv MeToXmv oTO
Kevrpikd AnoBsmpno AElwv ka1 PExp) ouvoAikol apiBpol 200 dwpeav Meroxwy ava Enevdum.»

Me 8edopévo 0TI n KaTaxwpnon Twv Meroxwv TG Anpdaiag Eyypa@rig kal Tng ISiwTikhg Tonodémong oto K.AA.
ATav n 17/07/02, dikaioUX0! Tou KIVATPOU €ival 01 KATOXOI HETOXWV HE TV AREN TNG cuvedpiaong Tou X.A.A. TG
16/01/2003.

H npepopnvia nioTwong Twv dwpedv MeToxwv onig Mepideg nou mpolyv o1 dikalouxo! EnevduTég oTo 2.A.T, Ba
YvVWOTONOMOEl Ue VEWTEPN avakoivwon TG eTaipeiag,.

ABfyva 07/01/2003

TO AIOIKHTIKO ZYMBOYAIO
AyyAIko O£pa
AyvAIxk6 Keiggvo Avakoivmong

ZnNHEIDOEIG

MNapakaAoUue yia T dnuooieuon ¢ napoloag yvwoTonoinong oto Huepfoio AeAtio TIH@V Npog Evuépworn Tou
koivoU. BeBaiwvouye pnTa kal avenipUAGKTa 6T OAa Ta OTOIXEIA KAl 01 NANPOPOpPIEE Nou anodTEAAOULE Eival
anoAUTwG NANRPN, akpipr kai enikaipa.

Ma Tnv Evaipia

ZACHOS M A
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ATHENS STOCK EXCHANGE S.A.
ANNOUNCEMENT REGARDING A CHANGE IN THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS OR TOP EXECUTIVES
(Based on Article 4 par. 1 point e of the Stock Exchange Committee Decree 5/204/14.11.2000)

FROM: THE GREEK ORGANIZATION OF FOOTBALL PROGNOSTICS S.A.
TO: The Athens Stock Exchange S.A. 10, Sofokleous St. 105 59 Athens
C/O: INSPECTORATE OF CORPORATE DEEDS & UPDATES

CONCERNING LISTED COMPANIES
SUBJECT: Notification in the change of composition of the Board of Directors or top
executives

ANNOUNCEMENT

Announcement in Greek
ANNOUNCEMENT
BY OPAP S.A.

TO
ATHENS STOCK EXCHANGE
(c/o: Mr. VOURVAHI)

Info: Capital Markets Commission

By Announcement No K2 — 17050/24.1.2003 concerning registration in the Register of Sociétés
Anonymes, the minutes of the Board of Directors of OPAP S.A. dated 5.12.2002 were registered
according to which:

a) Antonios Basouris son of Alexandros, resident of Kalamaria, Thessalonica, 3 Kallipoleos St., holder
of I.D. No A 418821, has been elected replacing Nikolaos Kokkinis for the rest of his term, who
resigned.

b) The Board of Directors of OPAP S.A. is re-organized into a body as follows:

1. Constantinos Koskinas son of Marinos, resident Drapetsona, Piraeus, 6, N. Kazantzakis St., holder of
[.D. No M 189774, President of the Board of Directors and Managing Director

2. Antonios Basouris son of Alexandros, resident of Kalamaria, Thessalonica, 3 Kallipoleos St., holder
of I.D. No A 418821, member of the Board of Directors

3. Dionyssios Rizos son of George, resident of llioupoli, Attica, 43, Aghiou Constantinou St. holder of
ID No E 069455, member of the Board of Directors




4. Constantinos Gouvalas son of Nikolaos, resident of Athens, 6, Ros St., holder of ID No M 886962,
member of the Board of Directors

5. Nikolaos Apanomeritakis son of Anastasios, resident of Herakleion, Attica, 19, Agapis St., holder of '
ID No I1 071701, member of the Board of Directors.

6. Stavros Tzortzis son of George, resident of Pallini, Attica, Larissis & Anafis St., holder of Cyprian
ID No C 105614, member of the Board of Directors.

7. Maria Papandreou son of George, resident of Athens, 4-6, Dikis St., holder of ID No K 920795,
member of the Board of Directors.

8. Constantinos Harisiadis son of Christos, resident of Patras, 32A Danielidos St., holder of ID No =
36976, member of the Board of Directors.

9. Sotiris Spanidis son of loannis, resident of Kallithea, Attica, 137-139, Platonos St. holder of ID No
X 011578, member of the Board of Directors, representative of the employees.

10. Nikolaos Pavlias son of Dimitrios, resident of Moschato, Attica, 16, Galaxidiou St., holder of ID
No Z 071370, member of the Board of Directors, representative of the employees.

11. Dimitrios Politis son of loannis, resident of Vyronas, Attica, 56, Granikou St., holder of ID No X
248513, member of the Board of Directors, representative of OKE.

The term of the above Board of Directors will expire on 15/12/2005

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS &
MANAGING DIRECTOR OF OPAP S.A.

CONSTANTINOS KOSKINAS

Please note:

We kindly request this announcement to be published in the Daily Official List, in order to inform the
public. We expressly and unreservedly attest that all data and information sent, is fully complete,
accurate and updated.

On behalf of the Company,

ZACHOSMA
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XPHMATISTHPIO AZIQN AOHNON A.E.
FNQETOMNOIHEH AAAATHE SYNOEZHE AIOIKHTIKOY K2-01-015

2YMBOYAIOY 'H ANQTATQN AIEYOYNTIKQN ZTEAEXQN
(Baoel ApBpou 4 nap. 1 oroixeio € TNG Andgacnc EmTponrg Kepakaiayopdg 5/204/14.11.2000)

AMNO: OPFANIZMOZ MPOMNQITIKQN ArQNQN MOAOZOAIPOY A.E.

fMPOZ: Xpnuatiotipio A§idv ABnvav A.E. ZopokAgoug 10, 105 59, ABrva

YNOWH: YNHPEZIA [NTAPAKOAOYOHZIHE ETAIPIKQN NPA=EQN & ENHMEPQZH EIZHIMENQN ETAIPIOQN

©EMA: F'vwoTtonoinon aAAayng olivBeonc AloiknTiko ZupBouliou i} avwTATWY SIEUBUVTIKGOV OTEAEXDV
ANAKOINQXH

EAANnVikO Keipevo Avakoivworg

ANAKOINQXH
THZ O.NLA.N. A.E.

nPOZ
TO XPHMATIZTHPIO AZIQN AGHNQN
(YNOWH: Kou BOYPBAXH)

Koivonoinon: Enirpons} KepaAaiayopag

Me Tn pe apiBuo K2 - 17050 / 24.1.2003 Avakoivwor karaxawpnong oto MnTpwo Avavipwy Etaipsiov
karaxwpnénke To ané 5.12.2002 npakTiké Tou AloiknmikoU ZupBouliouv Tng O.N.A.N. A.E. glppwva e To onoio:

a) ExAéxBnke wg véo peAog Tou Alolknmikol ZupBouliou 0 Avraviog Mnacgolpng Tou AAeEGvEpou, KATOIKOG
Kahapapiag ©ecoalovikng — KaAAnoAews 3 ue AAT A 418821 ge avTikaTaoTaon Kai yia To undAoino g dnTeiag
Tou napamnBévrog NikoAdou Kokkivn.

B) AvacuykpoTnenke To Aloiknmkd ZupBoUAio Tng O.MN.A.T. A.E. 0t owpa wg £EAG:

1. KwvoTavrivog Kogkivag Tou Mapivou, xdtoikog Apanerowvag MNeipaid, od6¢ N. KaZavtiakn 6 ye AAT M 189774,
Npoedpog Tou A.Z. kal AleuBUvwy ZUpBoulog

2. AvTaviog Mnacolpng Tou AAeEavdpou, kaToikog Kahapapidg ©sooaiovikng, 086G KaAMNOAEwG 3 pE AAT A
418821, HEAOG TOU A.X,

3. Aiovuaiog Pifog Tou Mewpyiou, karoikog HAloundAswg ATTIKAS, 0306 Aviou KwvoTtavrivou 43 e AAT E 069455,
pEAOG Tou AZ.

4. KwvoTravTivog MNoupaiag Tou NikoAdou, kdToikog ABnvayv, 0d6¢ Pwg 6 ue AAT M 886962, péAog Tou A.X.

5. NikdAaog AnavwuepITakng Tou AvaoTaoiou, kKaToikog HpakAeiou ATTikNG, 0086 Aydnng 19 pe AAT N 071701,
HEAOC Tou A.Z.

6. ZTaUpog TlwpTlAg Tou MNewpyiou, karoikog NAaAAfvng ATTIKAG, 0086¢ Aapionc & Avaenc e apiBud deiriou
Kunpiakrig Tautémrag C 105614, pyéhog Tou A.Z.

7. Mapia Manavdpéou Tou Mewpyiou, KATOIKOG AGNVAV, 086G AiKNG 4 — 6 pe AAT K 920795, péAog Tou A.Z.

8. KwvoTavTivog Xapioiadng Tou Xprorou, KaToikog Narpwv, 036¢ Aavinhidog 32A pe AAT X 36976, péiog Tou A.X,
9. Zwtnpng Xnavidng Tou Iwavvn, kdToikog KaAAIBEéag ATnkNG, 080G MAGTwVOG 137 - 139 pe AAT X 011578, péhog
Tou A.X., ExnpOownog Twv epyalopévuv

10. NixdAaog NauAidg Tou Anpntpiou, katoikog MooxaTou ATTkAG, 086¢ Maiakidiou 16 pe AAT Z 071370, péhog Tou
A.X., eknpdgwnog Twv eyalopévwv

11. AnunTpiog MoAitng Tou Iwdvvn, kaToikog BUpwva ATTIKAG, 086G MpavikoU 56 e AAT £ 248513, HéAOG Tou A.Z.,
exnpoownog g OKE

H BnTeia Tou avwTEpw AloiknTikoD XupBouliou gival péxpr 15/12/2005
-0~
NPOEAPOZ TOY A.Z. &

AIEYOYNQN ZYMBOYAOZ
THZ O.M.A.N. A.E.

KQNITANTINOZ KOZKINAZ
AyyAiko Oepa

AyyAixo Keipevo Avakoiveong

ZNHEIWOEIG
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XPHMATIZTHPIO ASIQN AOHNQN A.E.
ANAKOINQZH ZXETIKH ME ENIXEIPHMATIKEZ ESEAIZEIZ | K4-01-062
2THN ETAIPIA

ANO: OPrANIZMOZ NPOINQZITIKGN ArFQNQN NOACZIOQAIPOY A.E.
NPOZ: Xpnuaniompio ASiav A8nvwv A.E. ZopokAéoug 10, 105 59, Adnva
YNOWH: YNHPEZIA NAPAKOAOYOHZIHZ ETAIPIKQN NMPASEQN & ENHMEPQZH EIZHIMENGQN ETAIPION
OEMA: Avakoivwan yia enixeipnuankég eEeAikeig otny eraipia
ANAKOINQZH

EAANVIKO Keipevo Avakoiveoong

H OMARN A.E avakoivwvel 0Ti uneypagn X0eg ot Asukwoia n véa diakpariki] cupewvia ,peTall EAAGSog kar Kirnpou
nou agopd ot AsiToupyia Tng ONANM A.E. omv Kunpiakn Anpokpatia, n onoia 8a enirpéwel 1 dpagmpionoinorn Tng
graipiag oTn MeyaAdvnoo HE Opoug ENIXEIPNUATIKOTNTAG.

H ONAM A.E. Spaogmpionolieital oty KUnpo anéd To 1969, péow diktUou 160 npakropeiwv onuepa, Ta onoia
S1aférouv To cUvoAo Twv naixvidiov nou npoo@epovral kal oty EAAGSa pe e&gipeon To naixvid! « Nape ZToixnua»,

H Aloiknon ™g OMAN A.E. ex@palel TNV IKGvonoinoT TNG yid To anoTEAECUA TV SIaNpayPaTEUOEWY Kal SEOUEUETAI
VO EVNPEPWOE! TO ENEVEUTIKO KOIVO YIa Ta BAoikd onueia TNg oupBaons Ka8we Kal TIG EXTIMWHEVES ENIATWOEIS TNG,
Npog To TEAOG Tou Wiva, KaTd Tnv dnuoocionoinon Twv anoTEAEGUATWY TNG XpRAong Tou 2002.

AyYYyAIkO O£pa

AyYAIko Keigevo Avakoivwong

OPAP S.A. is pleased to announce the new agreement signed yesterday between the Governments of Greece and
Cyprus, which will allow, for the operation of games in the Republic of Cyprus on a commercial basis.

OPAP S.A. has been operating its existing range of games in the Republic of Cyprus, with the exception of
"Stihima”, since 1969, through a network of approximately 160 outlets today.

The management of OPAP S.A. wishes to express its satisfaction at the outcome of the negotiations and will
provide further details on the terms of the agreement and its expected impact on OPAP’s financial statements
which will be released by the end of this month.

ZNUEIDOEIG

NapakaAoUye yia T dnuooicuon TG napoloag yvwaoTonoinong oTo Huepnoio AeATio TIHOV NPOG EVHEPWON TOU
korvoU. BeBaiwvoupe pnTa kai aveniQUAAGKTa 0TI OAG Ta OTOIXEIA KaI 01 NANPOPOPIEG NOU GNoOTEAAOUNE ival
anocAUTwg nARpn, akpifn kai enikaipa.

Na rnv Eraipia

ZACHOS M A
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ATHENS STOCK EXCHANGE S.A.
ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION (NOT PROVIDED IN
OTHER CATEGORIES)
(Based on Article S par. 5a of Presidential Decree 350/1985)

FROM: THE GREEK ORGANIZATION OF FOOTBALL PROGNOSTICS S.A.
TO: The Athens Stock Exchange S.A. 10, Sofokleous St. 105 59
C/O: INSPECTORATE OF CORPORATE DEEDS & UPDATES CONCERNING LISTED
COMPANIES
SUBJECT:  Announcement of other important issues.
ANNOUNCEMENT
ATHENS 20/11/2002
PRESS RELEASE

November turns out to be a successful month for OPAP S.A. as following its inclusion in the FTSE-
ASE20 Index of A.S.E., recently MSCI also added OPAP S.A.’s share to the MSCI Greece Index,
which is the most “famous” index among foreign institutional investors.

The Management of OPAP S.A. acknowledges this with great satisfaction, considering that its efforts
to boost the company has made it one of the most attractive investment options in the European market.

The Management of OPAP S.A., continuing its efforts, recently organized a road show in London, in
the presence of strong European investment houses, where all of the latest corporate developments
were presented, thus meeting the increased need for information on the part of foreign institutional
investors and analysts covering the share.

The response of foreign administrators and the community of analysts 1s deemed to be completely
satisfactory by the OPAP S.A. Management, a development which enables Management to further plan
presentations both in Greece and abroad, in order to further strengthen the trust created heretofore.

To that direction, within the next weeks, OPAP S.A. shall have the opportunity to offer to its investing
public new upgraded services through the support of the Investors Relations Department, with special
emphasis on assisting the increasing number of foreign institutional investors participating in the
shareholding.

At the same time, according to research by Datastream, the existing dividend return offered by OPAP
S.A. places us among the top twenty companies with the highest dividend return throughout Europe for
2002, a development that strengthens the trust of the investors in our capital and demonstrates the
success of the Management. It should be noted that by decision of the BoD, OPAP S.A. will proceed to
distribution of an interim dividend amounting to 0.27 euro per share.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OPAP S.A.




ATHENS STOCK EXCHANGE S.A.
ANNOUNCEMENT REGARDING BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT IN THE COMPANY

FROM: THE GREEK ORGANIZATION OF FOOTBALL PROGNOSTICS S.A.

TO: The Athens Stock Exchange S.A. 10, Sofokleous St. 105 59 Athens

C/O: INSPECTORATE OF CORPORATE DEEDS & UPDATES CONCERNING LISTED
COMPANIES

SUBJECT: ANNOUNCEMENT REGARDING BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT IN THE
COMPANY

OPAP S.A,, is pleased to announce the new agreement signed yesterday between the Governments of
Greece and Cyprus, which will allow, for the operation of games in the Republic of Cyprus on a

commercial basis.

OPAP S.A. has been operating its existing range of games in the Republic of Cyprus, with the
exception of “Stihima”, since 1969, through a network of approximately 160 outlets today.

The management of OPAP S.A. wishes to express its satisfaction at the outcome of the negotiations
and will provide further details on the terms of the agreement and its expected impact on OPAP’s
financial statements which will released by the end of this month.

Please note:

We kindly request this announcement to be published in the Daily Official List, in order to inform the
public. We expressly and unreservedly attest that all data and information sent, is fully complete,
accurate and updated ‘



